

# Constitution and By-laws of the Miami Figure Skating Club

## ARTICLE I: NAME

### Section 1

The name of this organization shall be known as the Miami FIGURE SKATING CLUB, hereinafter called "the Club".

### Section 2

The Club shall have its headquarters at the Kendall Ice Arena, 10355 Hammocks Blvd, Miami, Florida 33196.

## ARTICLE II: PURPOSE

### Section 1

The corporation was organized exclusively for charitable and educational purposes. Among its purposes are to provide skating scholarships to earnest ice skaters; to encourage the instruction, practice, and advancement of the members in amateur figure skating including Moves In The Field, freestyle, dance, and pair skating; to encourage good sportsmanship and cultivate a spirit of fraternal feeling among ice skaters; to sponsor, produce, or cooperate in the production of amateur ice carnivals as may be necessary, advisable, proper, or incidental in the realization of the objects and purposes of this organization; and to carry out the general policies of U. S. Figure Skating.

### Section 2: Non-Discrimination Statement

Miami Figure Skating Club is a non-profit organization committed to provide equal opportunity, and does not discriminate on the basis of sex, race, religion, marital status, age, sexual orientation, national origin or disability.

### Section 3: Confidentiality and Privacy Statement

In order to protect the privacy of our members and families, the club prohibits the dissemination of contact phone numbers, electronic mail (e-mail), or addresses without written consent from the member or parent/guardian if the member is less than eighteen (18) years of age. An annual club directory may be published for the exclusive use of Miami Figure Skating Club Members.

### Section 4: Sexual Harassment and Abuse Statement

Miami FSC and U.S. Figure Skating strive to provide a safe environment for its members and to protect the opportunity of its members to participate in our sport in an atmosphere that is free of harassment and abusive practices. The organizations will not tolerate or condone any form of harassment or abuse of any of its members including coaches, officials, directors, employees, parents, athletes, and volunteers – or any other persons - while they are participating in or preparing for a figure skating activity or event conducted under the auspices of the Club and/or U.S. Figure Skating. Refer to Article XVIII – Sexual Harassment & Abuse, for more details.

## ARTICLE III: OFFICERS

The Officers shall be President, Vice President, Secretary, and Treasurer. (The offices of Secretary and Treasurer may be combined.)

## ARTICLE IV: DUTIES OF OFFICERS

### Section 1: President

It shall be the duty of the president to preside at all meetings of the Club and the Board of Governors. He shall be responsible for the entire supervision and management of the Club and its property subject, however, to the control of the Board of Governors. He shall have the power to suspend any member for violating the rules and regulations of the Club, pending the approval of the Board of Governors, and the power to call special Board meetings and Club meetings.

The President, together with the Secretary, shall sign all agreements and contracts made by the Club, upon approval of the Board of Governors. He shall cosign checks with the Treasurer in the name of the Club. He shall perform any other duties usually pertaining to the office of President.

### Section 2: Vice president

It shall be the duty of the Vice President to assist the President in the discharge of his duties and, in his absence, officiate in his stead. He shall be chairman of the Membership Committee.

### Section 3: Secretary

The Secretary shall keep the minutes of all meetings of the Board of Governors and the Club, and conduct the correspondence of the Club, giving notice to the members by mail two (2) weeks before Stated Meetings and one (1) week before Special Meetings. The Secretary shall keep a correct list of all members. He shall furnish new members with the rules and regulations of the Club.

### Section 4: Treasurer

The Treasurer shall have charge of the funds of the Club and shall keep a record of all receipts and disbursements. He shall collect and receive all dues and other monies and render a written report when requested by the President or Board of Governors. The funds shall be deposited in the name of the Club in a bank approved by the Board of Governors. All disbursements by check shall be signed by the President and the Treasurer or other designated officer or member of the Board of Governors. The Treasurer shall pay annually the dues of the Club to U. S. Figure Skating.

## ARTICLE V: BOARD OF GOVERNORS

### Section 1: Number of Members

The Board of Governors shall be composed of the four elected officers of the Club, four elected members of the Club, and the Test Chairman who shall be appointed by the Board.

### Section 2: Qualification (To take effect after the Club has gone through probationary status)

Only home club members of the Miami Figure Skating Club may serve on the Board of Governors. A person must have been a member of the Club prior to December 1st in order to be eligible for election to the Board of Governors.

### Section 3: Term of Office

The officers shall be elected at the last Stated Meeting of the season on odd numbered years for a term of two (2) years or until their successors are elected or appointed. The four additional members serve on the Board with the Officers shall be elected at the last Stated Meeting of each season for a term of one (1) year or until their successors are elected or appointed. The term of the Test Chairman shall be two (2) years and shall run concurrently with the elected officers.

### Section 4: Method of Election

Nominations may be made from the floor and/or by a nominating committee of three (3) appointed by the Board of Governors. The Nominating Committee shall consist of one (1) member from the Board of Governors and two (2) members from the general membership.

### Section 5: Method of Voting

Voting for the elected members of the Board of Governors shall be by ballot and the four receiving the greatest number shall be elected. Any member eligible to vote who cannot attend a meeting of the election of officers because of illness or for business reasons may cast his vote by sealed ballot. The ballot must be signed by the voting member.

### Section 6: Vacancies

If an officership becomes vacant, the Board shall appoint a Club member to fill the position until the next stated annual meeting at which time a successor shall be elected for the remainder of the term. If an elected Governorship becomes vacant, the Board shall appoint a Club member to fill the position until the next stated annual meeting at which time a successor shall be elected for the remainder of the term.

## ARTICLE VI: POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS

### Section 1: Meetings

Meetings of the Board of Governors may be called at any time by the President or at least five (5) members of the Board. Any five (5) members of the board may also call a Special Meeting upon written notice to all members of the Board of Governors at least seven (7) days prior to the meeting. The notice shall state the date of the meeting, purpose for the meeting being called, and the names of the five members requesting the meeting.

### Section 2: Quorum

Six (6) members of the Board of Governors shall constitute a quorum.

### Section 3: Authority

The Board of Governors shall have the entire authority in the management of affairs and finances of the Club, including assessment of dues, and shall have general control of all its property. All rights and powers connected therein shall be vested in them.

### Section 4: Rules

They shall make such rules as they deem proper respecting the use of the Club's property, prescribe rules for the admission of strangers, fix penalties for offenses against the rules, and make rules for their own government and for the government of the committees appointed by them.

### Section 5: Appropriations

All appropriations from the funds of the Club shall be made by the Board of Governors.

### Section 6: Audit

They shall audit the records of the Vice President, Secretary, and Treasurer and of the committees.

### Section 7: Indebtedness

They shall have the power to limit the indebtedness of a member of the Club to the Club.

### Section 8: Suspend or Expel

They shall have the power to suspend or expel any member for violations of the Constitution and By-laws or for conduct which they shall deem improper, but no member shall be expelled or suspended for longer than thirty (30) days without a hearing.

### Section 9: Admit to Membership

Potential members shall be accepted for membership upon payment of membership dues and verification of good standing from U. S. Figure Skating. All members will be subject to U. S. Figure Skating rules and are responsible to abide by said rules.

Section 10: Readmit to Membership

There may be a regular meeting to readmit to membership without the payment of a second initiation fee for any former member whose resignation has been fully accepted. Such readmission must be by ballot and two (2) negative votes shall reject. No rejected candidate shall be again proposed for reinstatement within six (6) months after the rejection.

Section 11: Drop and Reinstate to Membership

They may drop from the roll any delinquent member and also reinstate such member as hereinafter provided.

Section 12: Standing Committees

They shall appoint all standing committees with full authority over them except as hereinafter provided and shall appoint such other committees as shall seem to them necessary.

Section 13: U. S. Figure Skating Delegate

They shall elect a delegate or delegates to United States Figure Skating. The Club Secretary shall inform the Association's Secretary, in writing, of the name and address of the Delegate elected. Said Delegate shall be the sole representative between the Club and U. S. Figure Skating and shall attend U. S. Figure Skating meetings either in person or by proxy. The Board may, as it sees fit, pay the traveling expenses of the Delegate to U. S. Figure Skating meetings.

Section 14: Expenditures and Revenue

They shall prepare and submit to the Fall Stated Meeting a program of anticipated expenditures for the coming year together with proposals of sources of revenue to meeting same.

Section 15: Vacancies

The Board of Governors may remove, by a majority vote of the whole Board, any Officer, Chairman, or member of any committee. If a Standing Committee or Special Committee Chairmanship becomes vacant, the Board shall appoint a Club member for the remainder of the term.

**ARTICLE VII: STANDING COMMITTEES**

Section 1: Names

The Standing committees shall be, when advisable

- |                            |                              |
|----------------------------|------------------------------|
| 1. Membership Committee    | 5. Test Committee            |
| 2. Music Committee         | 6. Competitions Committee    |
| 3. Rules and Ice Committee | 7. Sports Medicine Committee |
| 4. Hospitality Committee   | 8. Parent Advisory Committee |

and such other committees as the Board of Governors may deem necessary. With the exception of the Test Chairman, they shall be appointed annually by the Board of Governors at the first Stated Meeting of the season. The powers and duties of the committees shall be such as the Board of Governors shall determine.

Section 2: Membership Committee

The Membership Committee shall consist of the Vice President as Chairman and two (2) additional members. The Membership Committee shall receive applications from prospective members, investigate the qualifications of all candidates for membership, report their conclusions to the Board of Governors for decision, and notify applicants of their election or rejection.

Section 3: Music Committee

The Music Committee shall select and make arrangements for the playing of all music at the Club sessions, entertainments, carnivals, etc.

Section 4: Rules and Ice Committee

The Rules and Ice Committee shall make rules and arrangements for the conduct of Club members during the regular skating sessions and test sessions. Those rules and regulations shall be approved by the Board of Governors and then posted on the Club bulletin board. They shall investigate and recommend club ice dates for the entire year. Those rules, regulations and dates shall be approved by the Board of Governors at the first meeting of the Board of Governors for that fiscal year and upon approval be made available to the club membership.

Section 5: Hospitality Committee

The Hospitality Committee shall provide and take charge of social entertainment given by the Club.

Section 6: Test Committee

The Test Committee shall consist of as many members as the Board of Governors may deem necessary. The Test Chairman shall have complete charge of conducting USFS tests, of obtaining approved U. S. Figure Skating judges, of setting deadlines to receive applications, and establishing the time schedule and order of skating, as well as any priorities to be followed by the candidates. It shall be the duty of the test Chairman to fulfill all requirements of the Test Chairman as set forth in the current USFS Rulebook.

Section 7: Competitions Committee

The Competitions Committee shall have complete charge of all Club competitions and exhibitions. They shall be responsible for acquiring necessary sanctions for Club events.

### Section 8: Sports Medicine Committee

They shall be comprised of at least one U. S. Figure Skating Sports Medicine Society Member and function to provide continual information to the Club members for enhancement of performance and prevention of injuries in figure skaters.

### Section 9: Parent Advisory Committee

They shall be comprised of at least one parent with an active skater that is a Club member. The parent will be appointed by the Board. The parent will serve as a club liaison to participate in an advisory role to U. S. Figure Skating.

## **ARTICLE VIII: MEMBERSHIP**

### Section 1: Classes of Membership

There shall be eight (9) classes of membership:

#### 1. *Family Membership* will include:

- One skater in a family under the age of eighteen (18); this skater shall not be eligible to vote, hold office, serve on the Board of Governors, or chair committees.
- One parent/guardian from that family who will represent the interests of the above mentioned skaters under 18. More than one (1) parent/guardian and additional skaters may join the Club under the Associate Member fee schedule and will have full club benefits. However, only one (1) parent/guardian per family shall be eligible to vote and only one (1) Officership or Governorship per family is allowed. The parents' memberships automatically terminate when the youngest skater in the family becomes eighteen (18) years old or when all skaters under 18 in the family cease to be Club members.

2. *Individual Membership* will include skaters eighteen (18) years of age or older. Senior members shall be eligible to hold office, to serve on the Board of Governors, to chair committees and to vote.

#### 3. *Basic Skills Family Membership* will include:

- All skaters in a family under the age of eighteen (18) who have passed no U. S. Figure Skating tests; these skaters, or their parents/guardians shall not be eligible to vote, hold office, serve on the Board of Governors, or chair committees. A Basic Skills membership must be upgraded to Family Membership before any U. S. Figure Skating tests may be processed.
- At least one parent/guardian from that family who will represent the interests of the above mentioned skaters under 18. More than one (1) parent/guardian may join this class of membership.

4. *Second Club* membership will include all skaters in a family who have a home club other than Miami Figure Skating Club. They or their parents/guardians shall not be eligible to hold office, to serve on the Board of Governors, to chair committees, or to vote. Additional fees may be assessed for some MFSC activities. Membership includes club ice, test sessions, parties and newsletter.

5. *Associate* membership will include non-skaters, eighteen (18) years of age or older, second parent or additional junior skaters. Associate members are eligible to hold office, to serve on the Board of Governors, to chair committees and to vote.

6. *Non-Resident* skating membership will include skaters who live outside a seventy-five (75) mile radius of Kendall Ice Arena. One parent must join if the skater is less than eighteen (18) years of age. The skaters (or their parent) shall not be able to hold office, to serve on the Board of Governors, to chair committees, or to vote. When in Miami, they may skate during Club sessions. When in Miami they skate during Club sessions and pay the session fee for each session skated.

7. *Professional* membership will include skating professionals who are eighteen (18) years of age or older and PSA eligible. Professional members of the club shall not be eligible to hold office, serve on the Board of Governors, or chair committees. They may enter into and take part in all discussions at General Meetings but may not submit motions or vote. They may be requested by the board to act in an advisory capacity to committees at Board Meetings or at General Meetings. *Exception:* One member (selected or appointed by the Board of Governors) from this category will serve as "Professional Representative" on the Board of Governors with voting privileges.

8. *Honorary* members may be elected at any meeting of the board of Governors by voice or by ballot; two (2) negative votes shall reject. No rejected candidate shall be again proposed for this membership within six (6) months after rejection. Honorary members shall be free from initiation fees, dues, and assessments. They may represent the Club in exhibitions and attend ice skating sessions under the same rules governing skating members. They shall not be eligible to serve on the Board of Governors, to chair committees or to vote. They may be requested by the Board of Governors to act in an advisory capacity to committees at Board meetings, and at General Meetings. They may enter into and take part in all discussions at General Meetings but may not submit motions.

### Section 2: Size of Membership

The size of the membership of the Club shall be established by the Board of Governors.

### Section 3: Application for Membership

Applications for membership shall be directed to the membership Committee Chairperson. The membership committee chairperson shall verify with U. S. Figure Skating that said member is in good standing before approval for membership is granted. No rejected candidate shall be eligible for membership within six (6) months after rejection.

Section 4: Termination of Membership

A membership is terminated when the member submits a written resignation to the Board of Governors, fails to pay dues or fees in the allotted time, or is expelled as contained in this Constitution and Bylaws.

Section 5: Voting

Only one (1) vote per family is allowed.

Section 6: Membership Renewal Period

The membership renewal period shall be from **June 1 through August 31** of every year.

Section 7: Application for Membership after the Renewal Period – New Membership Only

New members joining the Club after the **renewal period (June 1 through July 31)** shall pay their fees as specified below:

After renewal period but before December 31	100% Membership Fee
From January 1 through June 30	50% of Membership Fee

Section 8: Club Officer, Board of Governors Positions, and Committee Chairmanships

Only members in good standing who are individual members, family members or associate members may hold office, be elected/appointed to the Board of Governors, or chair committees. Only one (1) Officership or Governorship position per family is allowed regardless of class of membership.

**ARTICLE IX: DUES, FEES, AND ASSESSMENTS**

Section 1: U. S. Figure Skating and Club Membership Dues

Upon payment of the USFS national dues, a member will receive a registration card and, to the first member of each family, a subscription to SKATING magazine. U. S. Figure Skating and Club membership dues are payable at the beginning of each U. S. Figure Skating season. .

Section 2 Club Membership Ice Fees

The ice fees for the regular Club sessions shall be such as the Board of Governors shall determine annually to suit existing circumstances. If not paid on an annual basis, the ice fees are due and payable as stated on the membership application for the current skating season. Following a thirty (30) day grace period, Club privileges will be rescinded from a delinquent member subject to notification by the Treasurer.

Section 3: New Membership Fees

New members in the current skating season shall pay the U. S. Figure Skating and Club membership dues in full. Those desiring skating privileges shall pay the assessment set by the Board of Governors.

Section 4: Additional Assessments

The Board of Governors shall have the power to levy additional assessments as they may decide in any year upon every member of the Club. The membership shall be notified by email/ writing, or by poster, of such assessment and the notice must clearly state the specific purpose for which the assessment has been made. Such levy or assessment cannot validly be made without the consent of the majority of the members of the Club.

Section 5: Arrears for Dues

Any member in arrears for dues or other indebtedness shall be notified by mail by the Treasurer at his last known address. If the amount is not paid in full within one month thereafter, the name of the delinquent shall be reported by the Treasurer to the Board of Governors at their next meeting. The Board of Governors may drop from the roll the name of such delinquent member. A member dropped from the roll for non-payment of dues, or other indebtedness may upon payment of same, at the discretion of the Board of Governors, be reinstated to full membership.

Section 6: Arrears for Dues Restrictions

Each member is responsible to keep his ice fees and membership dues current. Any delinquent member shall be considered not in good standing with the Club and will not be entitled to the privileges of entering tests, competitions, carnivals, exhibitions, or receive a letter of sanction in activities of other clubs. No members in arrears for dues or other indebtedness to the Club shall be eligible to hold office or be entitled to vote.

### Section 7: Method of Payment

All payments made to the Miami Figure Skating Club shall be in cash or personal check. Two returned personal checks will result in automatic suspension of check payment privileges. Any further monetary transactions will be conducted on a cash basis only.

## **ARTICLE X: CLUB MEETINGS**

### Section 1: Time

The members of the Club are to have two annual Stated Club Membership Meetings each year. A Stated Meeting shall be held within one month of the opening of the skating season in the fall and within one month of the closing of the skating season in the spring.

The Board of Directors shall meet at least once every month, during the skating season, with no less than nine (9) meetings during the calendar year. Meeting dates, location and time shall be pre-selected by the Board of Directors at the first meeting of the skating season or calendar year, whichever preferable.

### Section 2: Place

Club meetings shall be held at the Club headquarters or other suitable facility.

### Section 3: Special Meeting

The Secretary shall call Special Meetings at the direction of the President, or the Board of Governors, or upon written request of ten (10) Club members who are in good standing.

### Section 4: Quorum

A quorum at Stated and Special Meetings shall consist of a majority of the voting members of the Club.

### Section 5: Notice

Notices of Stated and Special Meetings shall be mailed by the Secretary to every member at least two (2) weeks in advance of the first and at least one (1) week in advance of the latter, and shall be posted by the Secretary for the same length of time on the Club bulletin board.

### Section 6: Special Meeting Limitation

No business shall be transacted at a Special Meeting except that of which notice is given.

### Section 7: Voting

Regular voting decisions shall be decided by simple majority of the voting members present. The Constitution and Bylaws may be amended and/or repealed by a two-thirds majority of voting members present.

## **ARTICLE XI: RULES AND REGULATIONS**

### Section 1: Voting

Only members in good standing who are individual members, family members or associate members may vote. Only one (1) vote per family is allowed.

### Section 2: Guests

Members may introduce guests and entitle them to ice privileges upon payment of the guest fee, which shall be determined by the Board of Governors. Such guests shall be entitled to ice privileges only. Guests shall be subject to all rules, regulations, etc. as shall be in force. Members introducing guests shall be responsible for the conduct of their guests.

### Section 3: Prospective Members

Prospective members may be admitted to two (2) Club sessions, free of charge, per season if he/she is accompanied in person by a Club member, or introduced by the Club Professional who, in turn, introduces him to the Chairman of the Membership Committee or, in the absence of the Chairman, to one of the Committee members or one of the Board.

### Section 4: Out-of-Town Skaters

A visiting skater from an out-of-town member club of U. S. Figure Skating may skate two (2) sessions free of charge each season. Thereafter the normal skating fee will be charged for each session attended.

### Section 5: Competition/Exhibition Entries

No member or members of the Club shall make entry in the name of the Club in any competition or exhibition except with approval of the Board of Governors or someone given this authority by them.

### Section 6: Change of Address

All members must immediately notify the Secretary of any change of address. Failure to do so shall be deemed a waiver of any notice called for under the rules and regulations of the Club.

### Section 7: Privileges

Only those who have been admitted as members of the Club, remain in good standing with the Club and U. S. Figure Skating, and conduct themselves according to the purposes for which this Club was organized shall be entitled to the privileges of the Club. The rights and interests of a member in the privileges of the Club shall terminate with the period of his membership. All those who have been admitted as members of the Club shall be deemed to have assented to be bound by the Constitution and Bylaws of the Club, all restrictions validly made, penalties validly imposed, any rulings or decisions properly made, and the exercise of any authority vested in the President, Board of Governors, or in any committee.

#### Section 8: Appeals

Any decision, rule, or change of any nature whatsoever as shall be made by the President, the Board of Governors, or by any committee may be contested by an appeal filed with the Secretary and signed by ten (10) adult members. Such appeal shall be brought up at the next regular meeting or at a Special Meeting and is to be decided by a two-thirds majority of the adult members present.

#### Section 9: Code of Conduct

The U. S. Figure Skating Code of Conduct GR 1.03 will apply to all Club events. Not excluding club ice or other club social events. All members will be expected to sign the Club Code of Conduct agreement as stated on the Club membership application form. Failure to abide by said rules will result in termination of membership

#### Section 10: Indemnification

Neither the Club nor any officer or individual member shall be held liable for accident, injury, or losses sustained by any member or guest. The Directors, Trustees, and Officers of the Miami Figure Skating Club, when acting on behalf of the Miami Figure Skating Club within the course and scope of their authority and duties as such, shall be indemnified and held harmless from any and all claims, demands, actions, and causes of actions, of whatsoever nature, which have been or which may hereafter be asserted by any person, firm, or corporation whatsoever claiming by, through, or under them, resulting from or in any similar manner connected with the use of the Kendall Ice Arena.

### **ARTICLE XII: DISCIPLINE, SUSPENSION, AND EXPULSION**

#### Section 1: Complaints

Any member or members having a complaint against another member for the infraction of any law or rule, other than skating rules, such as conduct injurious to the welfare of the Club, may report the same in writing to the Board of Governors. Such complaint shall set forth the facts of the case, together with the names of witnesses, if any. After the receipt of such a complaint, a meeting of the Board of Governors shall be held as soon as practicable to investigate same. The complainant and the member complained of, shall receive at least seven (7) days notice of such a meeting and may be heard with their witnesses. The statements and evidence shall be reduced to writing and filed with the Secretary, and he shall mail copies thereof to the complainant or complainants and to the member complained of. An appeal from the decision of the Board of Governors may be taken to the Club within seven (7) days thereafter by serving upon the Secretary a written notice of such appeal. A Special Meeting shall thereupon be called for the consideration of the case and a two-thirds vote shall be necessary to reverse the decision of the Board of Governors.

#### Section 2: Suspension/Expulsion

The grounds for suspension and expulsion shall be as follows:

1. Failure and/or refusal to obey the rules and regulations of the Club or U. S. Figure Skating
2. Conduct such as would tend to bring the Club and/or its members into disrepute
3. Conduct inconsistent with the best interest of the Club and/or its members.

A member may be suspended by a resolution of the Board of Governors. Notice of suspension must be properly delivered to the member stating the reason for suspension and the period of time for which the member is suspended.

A member may be expelled from the Club by a resolution of the Board of Governors. Notice must be properly delivered to the member requesting his resignation on or before a time stated in the notice. The membership of the person so notified shall then be taken up at the next regular or Special Meeting. The President shall state his case, after which a vote of the adult members present will be taken and a two-thirds majority will decide.

### **ARTICLE XIII: DISSOLUTION**

Upon the dissolution of the corporation, the Board of Directors shall follow the provisions set forth in *Articles 608.441, 608.4421, 608.4431, 608.445, and 608.446 of the State of Florida Non-Profit Corporation Act* and application and distribution of the assets shall be applied and distributed as set out in *Article 608.444 of the State of Florida Non-Profit Corporation Act*. In any event, the corporation shall dispose of all of their remaining assets of the corporation after the payment or making provisions for the payment of all the liabilities of the corporation to such organizations or corporations organized and operated exclusively for charitable, educational, or other purposes as shall at the time qualify as an exempt organization or organizations under *Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954* (or the corresponding provisions of any future United States Internal Revenue Law) as the Board of Directors shall determine. Any such assets shall be disposed of by the District Court of the County in which the principal office of the corporation has been located exclusively for such purposes or to such organization or organizations, as said Court shall determine, which are organized and operated exclusively for such purposes.

### **ARTICLE XIV – REVOCATION OF DISSOLUTION**

The corporation may revoke dissolution following the provisions set forth in *Article 608.4411 of the State of Florida Non-Profit Corporation Act*.

#### **ARTICLE XV: AMENDMENTS**

##### Section 1: Amendments

This Constitution and Bylaws may be amended and/or appealed by the vote of two-thirds of the eligible voting members present at a Stated or Special Meeting.

##### Section 2: Procedures

Roberts' Rules of Order shall apply unless amended herein.